
Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, November 27, 2012                                                                     City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 
• Sound Cities Association Presentation – 15 minutes (Deanna Dawson, Executive Director) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment is not intended for conversation or debate.  Comments 
shall be limited to no more than four minutes per person and no more than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be 
notified in advance and background information shall be submitted in writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the 
right to deny any request, based on time constraints. Individuals may petition the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a 
future study session as time allows for up to 15 minutes to address the council on specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  November 13, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Accept Department of Commerce Aquatics Renovation Grant (Thomas) 
C-4. Accept King Conservation District Parks Grant (Thomas) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad:  November 8 meeting. 
• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  November 8 meeting. 
• Budget Priorities Advisory Committee Liaison:  November 7 meeting; November 21 

meeting rescheduled to November 28. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  November 7 special meeting. 
• Planning Chair Daniel Key:  November 1 and November 15 meetings. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  October 25 meeting; November 

22 meeting canceled.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Receive Public Testimony Regarding Proposed Fiscal Year 2013 Budget  
 
CONTINUED BUSINESS 
2. Continue 2013 Budget Deliberations (Hendrickson) 
 
 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


NEW BUSINESS 
3. Consider Ordinance Setting the 2012 Property Tax Levy for Collection in 2013 

(Hendrickson)  
4. Consider Ordinance Authorizing a Property Tax Increase (Hendrickson) 
5. Report on Proposed Scope of Work on Northern Gateway Area Study Phase II (Hart) 
6. Write-Off of Uncollectible Federal and County Surface Water Management Drainage Fees 

(Hendrickson) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
   
ADJOURN  
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-
480-2400.  



 

Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  November 27, 2012   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  NOVEMBER 13, 2012 CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES. 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes  
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the November 13, 2012 City Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes. 

 
 
 

1 of 95



Unapproved Draft – November 13, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  November 27, 2012 
 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, November 13, 2012 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
November 13, 2012, at 7:03 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, David Lucavish, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager; Richard Hart, Community 
Development Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; 
Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Aaron 
Walls, Acting City Attorney; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive  Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the assistance of members of Boy Scout Troop 787 who 
lead the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lucavish moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Jules Gommi, Maple Valley resident, President of Cedar Downs Homeowners Association, 
informed Council that Cedar Downs Homeowners Association had approved funds for a bench 
and plaque at Cedar Downs Park as a memorial for former Maple Valley Councilmember Gary 
Patrick.  Mr. Gommi further advised that Lisa Parsons of the Middle Green River Coalition 
recently completed a great deal of work in the park and asked Council to honor her with a bench 
also. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  October 9, 2012 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes; October 23, 2012 

City Council Special Joint Study Session with Arts Commission Minutes; October 23, 
2012 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes; and November 3, 2012 City Council 
Budget Workshop Minutes. 

 

2 of 95



Unapproved Draft – November 13, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  November 27, 2012 
 
 

 2 

C-2. Vouchers:  Vouchers #28448-28454 and Voided Vouchers #28445-28447, in the 
Amount of $2,781.31, Dated October 23, 2012; Vouchers #28455-28513, in the amount 
of $413,812.03, Dated October 29, 2012; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000808342-
1000808353 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $143,462.62, 
Dated October 26, 2012; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000836342-1000836355 
Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $139,346.29, Dated 
November 9, 2012. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
1.  Approve Contract for City Hall Carpet Replacement. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
Sharon Scott provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
award a contract, in substantially the form provided in the agenda packet, to Legacy 
Group for replacement carpet for city hall.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
2.  Consider Resolution Amending Development, Building Permit, and Admin Fees. 
 
Senior Planner Salina Lyons gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Ms. Lyons provided responses. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-10 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, 
AMENDING THE DEVELOPMENT AND 
PERMIT FEES, ADMINISTRATIVE FEES, AND 
TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEES FOR 2013. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
pass Resolution No. 12-10 amending the development and permit fees, administrative fees, 
and transportation impact fees for 2013, as proposed.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
3.  Consider 2013 Legislative Agenda. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmember Snoey suggested removing the medical marijuana item from the legislative 
agenda. 
 

3 of 95



Unapproved Draft – November 13, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  November 27, 2012 
 
 

 3 

City Manager Derek Matheson concurred that this would be a good idea since the draft 
legislative agenda had been put together before the recent election that legalized the possession 
of a small amount of marijuana. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to remove the item from the legislative 
agenda regarding medical marijuana. 
 
Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to adopt the 2013 
Legislative Agenda. 
 
Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to amend the last bullet 
item to replace “excluding AWC’s position on LEOFF 2 benefit enhancements.” with “excluding 
AWC’s position on collective bargaining and pensions.” 
 
Councilmembers discussed this motion. 
 
Councilmember Lanza suggested tabling this item until further information could be provided. 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
Councilmember Mhoon withdrew her motion to amend the legislative agenda, and 
Councilmember Lanza withdrew his second to this motion. 
 
Councilmember Wagner withdrew his motion to adopt the legislative agenda, and 
Councilmember Scott withdrew his second to this motion. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
postpone action on the 2013 Legislative Agenda item until the Council’s December 11 
meeting.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
4.  2012 Third Quarter Financial Reports. 
 
Finance Director Rob Hendrickson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Hendrickson provided 
responses. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
Council Action:  Council concurred to appoint Jeff Wagner as the voting delegate at the 
annual Suburban Cities Association meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 

4 of 95



Unapproved Draft – November 13, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  November 27, 2012 
 
 

 4 

ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:23 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

5 of 95



 

Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  November 27, 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #28514--28579, in the Amount of $399,018.13, Dated 
November 14, 2012; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000863884-1000863900 Inclusive, Plus 
Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $141,726.36, Dated November 21, 2012. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment: Vouchers #28514--28579, in the Amount 
of $399,018.13, Dated November 14, 2012; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1000863884-1000863900 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $141,726.36, Dated November 21, 2012. 
.  
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

6 of 95



7 of 95



8 of 95



9 of 95



10 of 95



11 of 95



12 of 95



13 of 95



14 of 95



15 of 95



16 of 95



17 of 95



18 of 95



19 of 95



Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 27, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN A GRANT FUNDING AGREEMENT 

FOR RENOVATION OF THE COVINGTON AQUATIC CENTER. 
   
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed Department of Commerce Grant Contract. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
During the 2012 legislative session the City received an appropriation for renovating the 
Covington Aquatic Center.  Approving this motion authorizes the City Manager to sign the grant 
contract, providing $400,000.  The contract states that the project is for renovation and 
restoration of the aquatic center including reroofing, painting the exterior, retrofitting lighting, 
resurfacing the entry plaza, remodeling the rental room, renovating the landscaping and installing 
a flag pole.  In signing this agreement the city is committing to operate the pool for ten years or 
repay a prorated amount of the grant.  The timeline for the project is to complete design and bid 
specifications over the winter, bid the project in the spring of 2013, with construction completed 
by December 2013.  The pool will remain open during construction. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
The Commerce grant is necessary funding for renovation of the Covington Aquatic Center.  If 
the contract is not approved, the city cannot proceed with construction. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
The grant amount is $400,000.  The total project cost listed in the grant contract is $388,000 as 
the Commerce Department deducts administrative fees of $12,000.  Additional city funds in the 
aquatics division budget, up to $40,000 over two calendar years, are available to pay for non-
reimbursable project management costs. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X    Motion           Other 
 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to sign the grant contract for 
renovation of the Covington Aquatic Center. 
  

REVIEWED BY:  Parks and Recreation Director, Finance Director, City Attorney, City 
Manager 
 

20 of 95



ATTACHMENT 1

21 of 95



22 of 95



23 of 95



24 of 95



25 of 95



26 of 95



27 of 95



28 of 95



29 of 95



30 of 95



31 of 95



32 of 95



33 of 95



34 of 95



35 of 95



36 of 95



37 of 95



38 of 95



39 of 95



40 of 95



41 of 95



42 of 95



43 of 95



44 of 95



45 of 95



46 of 95



Consent Agenda Item C-4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 27, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN A GRANT FUNDING AGREEMENT 

FOR CONSTRUCTION OF AN INTERPRETIVE TRAIL AND NATIVE PLANT 
RESTORATION AT COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK.  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed King Conservation District Grant Agreement. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
In May 2010 the City Council authorized staff to apply for grants to fund construction of phase 
one of Covington Community Park.  The application to the King Conservation District (KCD) in 
the Member Jurisdiction category has been approved by the KCD Board of Supervisors.  
Approving this motion authorizes the City Manager to sign the grant agreement, thus providing 
$100,569 toward the construction cost of Covington Community Park. 
 
In signing this agreement the city is committing to develop a woodland interpretive trail, conduct 
native plant restoration, and provide financial and progress reports.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
The KCD grant is a necessary component of construction funding for Covington Community 
Park.  If the grant agreement is not approved the city cannot meet all of the matching 
requirements agreed to as part of the WWRP grant approved in September 2011. 
   
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Revenue from the grant is $100,569.  The total project cost listed in the agreement is $208,632.  
Funds from the WWRP grant will also be utilized on this project.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute the KCD Grant 
Agreement for construction of a woodland interpretive trail and native plant 
restoration at Covington Community Park. 
 
 

REVIEWED BY:  Parks and Recreation Director, Finance Director, City Attorney, City 
Manager 
 

 

47 of 95



ATTACHMENT 1

48 of 95



49 of 95



50 of 95



51 of 95



52 of 95



53 of 95



54 of 95



55 of 95



56 of 95



57 of 95



58 of 95



59 of 95



60 of 95



 Agenda Item 1 
  Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 27, 2012 
 

SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE TESTIMONY FROM THE PUBLIC 
REGARDING PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2013 BUDGET [SECOND OF TWO 
PUBLIC HEARINGS]. 

ATTACHMENT(S):  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION:   
This is the second and final hearing on the 2013 proposed operating and capital budget required 
on or before the first Monday in December. It may be continued from day-to-day but no later that 
the 25th day prior to the next fiscal year (December 7).  
 
It is the policy of the City to follow applicable laws as they relate to the budget process. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____Ordinance  _____Resolution  _____Motion       X   Other 
 
 

NO COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED AT THIS MEETING 

61 of 95



 
 

 Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 27, 2012 
 
SUBJECT: CONTINUE 2013 BUDGET DELIBERATIONS  
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
Continue 2013 budget discussions. Answer questions raised during the budget workshop.  
 
ALTERNATIVES:  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____Ordinance  _____Resolution  _____Motion      X   Other 
 

 
DISCUSSION ONLY – NO ACTION REQUIRED 

 
REVIEWED BY: City Manager 

 

62 of 95



 
 

 Agenda Item 3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 27, 2012 
 
SUBJECT: PROPOSED ORDINANCE TO SET THE 2012 PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR 

COLLECTION IN 2013. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Proposed Ordinance. 
2. Property Tax Worksheet 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION:  
Property taxes for the City of Covington are currently one of three main sources of revenue for 
the City. Property taxes are subject to a variety of legal limitations, including limits on growth 
(the 101%), limits on tax rates, and limits on total rate for overlapping districts. Property taxes 
are the most stable form of taxation – one that is not portable.  
 
Staff has proposed a property tax increase of one percent (1.0%) excluding new construction, 
improvements to property, newly constructed wind turbines, any increase in the value of state 
assessed property, and annexations that have occurred, and refunds made, without voter 
approval. 
 
A public hearing is required under state law (RCW 84.55.120) to review other 2013 revenue 
sources that support the City’s general fund.   
 
This hearing, mandated by law, should focus on the City’s revenue sources and potential 
adjustments to property tax revenues. The deadline for setting 2013 property tax levies for cities 
in King County is December 3, 2012. 
 
It is the policy of the City to follow applicable laws as they relate to the budget process. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  
This is a significant revenue source for the City. Should the Council elect to make any significant 
changes to the levy that has been projected in the preliminary budget and the 6-Year Forecast 
Model, a corresponding change in the budgeted expenditures may need to be made. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
This ordinance sets the 2012 property tax levy for taxes to be collected in 2013. Covington’s 
estimated assessed value (AV) for 2013 is $1,528,990,204 including (estimated) $23,379,250 for 
new construction.  
 
Based on the AV, the estimated total levy is $2,364,343. This includes the beginning levy rate of 
$2,303,323 plus one percent of $23,033, plus an estimated amount for new construction of 
$34,622, and prior year refunds of $3,365. A final amount to be levied for new construction, the 

63 of 95



 
 

state-assessed public utility value, and prior year refunds made will be determined by the 
Assessor’s office.  
 
The estimated dollar increase over 2013 excluding new construction, annexations, increase in 
utility value, and prior year refunds is $23,033 or 1.0%.   
 
Because the County does not have the final numbers for items such as new construction, the 
state-assessed public utility value, and refunds made at this time, language is included in the 
ordinance that gives the County permission to make changes based on the final numbers. This 
would result in additional taxes for the City that are exclusive of the 1.0% increase. Therefore, 
the amount that will be included in the ordinance to cover any additional revenue not included in 
the preliminary worksheet will be $2,380,000. This is the base plus 1.0%.   The remainder will 
be added by the assessor’s office.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ___X__Ordinance  _____Resolution  _____Motion _____Other 
 

Councilmember ___________________ moves, Councilmember 
_____________________ seconds, to pass an Ordinance setting 
the 2012 property tax levy for collection in 2013 at $2,380,000. 

 
 
REVIEWED BY: City Manager; City Attorney.   

 

64 of 95



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 16-12 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
ADOPTING THE REGULAR PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR 
2012 FOR COLLECTION IN 2013. 
 

WHEREAS, the city council of the City of Covington has met and considered its budget 
for the calendar year 2013; and 

 
WHEREAS, the city council held a public hearing on October 23, 2012, and heard and 

duly considered relevant evidence and testimony regarding an increase in property tax revenues 
from January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013; and 

 
WHEREAS, the population of the City of Covington is more than 10,000;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 

COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section 1. The city council hereby establishes a regular levy in the amount of 
$2,380,000, which is a 1.0% increase in property tax revenue from the previous year, in addition 
to revenue resulting from new construction, improvements to property, newly constructed wind 
turbines, any increase in the value of state-assessed property, any annexations that have occurred, 
and refunds made in order to discharge the expected expenses and obligations of the city and in 
its best interest.  
 

Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after proper  
posting and publication.  A summary of this ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the 
ordinance in its entirety. 
 

Section 3.  If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it, is  
determined to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this 
ordinance and ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

ADOPTED by the City of Covington City Council at a regular meeting thereof held on 
the 27th day of November 2012. 

   
 Mayor Margaret Harto 

 
ATTESTED:      PUBLISHED:  November 30, 2012 
  EFFECTIVE:   December 5, 2012 
    
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
  
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 1

65 of 95



ATTACHMENT 2

66 of 95



 Agenda Item 4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 27, 2012 
 
SUBJECT: CONSIDER PROPOSED ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A PROPERTY TAX 

INCREASE IN TERMS OF BOTH DOLLARS AND PERCENTAGES AS 
REQUIRED BY RCW 84.55.120. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Proposed Ordinance. 
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION:  
To increase the regular property tax levy to be collected in the 2013 tax year, the City Council 
needs to adopt a separate ordinance as required by RCW 84.55.120 which states in part:  

     “No increase in property tax revenue, other than that resulting from the addition of new 
construction, increases in assessed value due to construction of electric generation wind turbine 
facilities classified as personal property, and improvements to property and any increase in the 
value of state-assessed property, may be authorized by a taxing district, other than the state, 
except by adoption of a separate ordinance or resolution, pursuant to notice, specifically 
authorizing the increase in terms of both dollars and percentage. The ordinance or resolution 
may cover a period of up to two years, but the ordinance shall specifically state for each year the 
dollar increase and percentage change in the levy from the previous year.” 

The attached ordinance meets the requirements of RCW 84.55.120. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
This ordinance states the property tax increase as one percent (1.0%) or $23,033 as required by 
statute.  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:        X    Ordinance  _____Resolution  _____Motion _____Other 
 

Councilmember _____________ moves and Councilmember ______________ 
seconds, to pass an Ordinance authorizing a property tax increase of one 
percent (1.0%) or $23,033 as required by RCW 84.55.120. 

 
REVIEWED BY: City Manager; City Attorney.  
 

67 of 95



  
ORDINANCE NO. 17-12 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
SPECIFICALLY AUTHORIZING A PROPERTY TAX 
INCREASE IN TERMS OF BOTH DOLLARS AND 
PERCENTAGES AS REQUIRED BY RCW 84.55.120. 
 

WHEREAS, the city council of the City of Covington has met and considered its budget 
for the calendar year 2013; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the city’s actual levy amount from the previous year was $2,303,323; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the population of the city is more than 10,000;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 
COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 Section 1. An increase in the regular property tax levy is hereby authorized for the 

levy to be collected in the 2013 tax year. The dollar amount of the increase over the actual levy 
amount from the previous year shall be $23,033.00, which is a percentage increase of one 
percent (1.0%) from the previous year. The increase is in addition to revenue resulting from new 
construction, improvements to property, newly constructed wind turbines, any increase in the 
value of state assessed property, any annexations that have occurred, and refunds made.  
 

 Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after proper 
posting and publication.  A summary of this ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the 
ordinance in its entirety. 
 

 Section 3.  If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it, is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this 
ordinance and ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

ADOPTED by the City of Covington City Council at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
27th day of November, 2012. 

   
 Mayor Margaret Harto 

ATTESTED: 
 
  PUBLISHED:  November 30, 2012 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
  EFFECTIVE:   December 5, 2012 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   
 
  
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 1

68 of 95



Agenda Item 5 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 27, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:   REPORT ON PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK FOR THE NORTHERN 

GATEWAY AREA STUDY PHASE II    
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Map of Northern Gateway Study Area 
2. Proposed Scope of Work for Hawk Gravel Extraction Property (Oakpointe Holdings 
3. Proposed Scope of Work for “Notch” Property (BranBar/H&C Enterprises)    

 
PREPARED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
                                
EXPLANATION: 
Stalzer and Associates, the consultant under contract with the city, has completed Phase I of the 
Northern Gateway Urban Growth Area Analysis and Annexation Study (the “Northern Gateway 
Study” or “Study”), which encompasses approximately 485 acres on both sides of Highway 18 at 
the existing SE 256th St. interchange. (See Attachment 1) All parties have expressed an interest 
in proceeding with Phase II of the Study, which is preparation of more specific subarea plans for 
both geographic portions of the Northern Gateway Area located on either side of Highway 18 at 
the SE 256th St. interchange.     
 
The two geographic subareas of land analyzed under the Study are as follows: the Hawk 
property, encompassing the gravel extraction and processing site on the southeast side of 
Highway 18 at SE 2567th St. and already part of the UGA (all but 80 acres of which is within the 
city limits); and the “Notch” area surrounding Jenkins Creek on the northwest side of Highway 
18 at the SE 256th St. interchange (not currently within the city limits or the UGA).  
 
Oakpointe Holdings, on behalf of the Hawk ownership, has indicated they will submit an 
annexation petition to the city for the 80 acres of their ownership within the city’s UGA, which is 
located east of the existing gravel operation.    
 
Each of the subareas of the Northern Gateway Study have different geography, topography, and 
environmental conditions and city staff and our consultant feel the scope of work required for 
each subarea should be evaluated and completed independently of each other.  In addition, since 
the “Notch” is not yet within the UGA, the city is limited in the degree to which a subarea plan 
can be completed. Although both areas are significant to the city, it’s staff recommendation that 
each subarea planning process follow separate but concurrent paths, potentially with different 
time lines, as each has its own objectives and public participation requirements.   
 
The Phase II scope of work for each subarea will involve a more detailed study of land use 
alternatives and policy framework for subarea plans; unique stakeholder outreach; development 

69 of 95



of proposed zoning district classifications; unique zoning and site planning and design 
regulations; projected capital facilities programs; and appropriate SEPA review processes.        
The South Subarea portion of the Northern Gateway Study involving the Hawk property and 
Oakpointe Holdings will require a detailed and time consuming Planned Action EIS as well as a 
more extensive public participation process.  In addition, the city will need to provide some base-
line transportation modeling from our transportation consultants, David Evans & Associates, 
which will be required the following year as part of our 2015 GMA mandated Comprehensive 
Plan Update.  Therefore the costs of this Subarea Plan will be substantial.   
 
The North Subarea portion of the Northern Gateway Study involving the “Notch” and BranBar 
property will require much less detail and take less time to complete.  Some transportation and 
traffic analysis will be required, but no EIS or SEPA review, since the land is not within the city 
limits or the UGA at this time, and no development proposal can be submitted to the city.  Those 
actions will come later when a specific development project is proposed.     
 
City staff and our consultant are providing a separate scope of work for each subarea. (See 
Attachments 2 and 3)  City staff is providing for council review and comment a suggested 
approach to the Phase II subarea planning process and the specifics of the scope of work 
involved.  If acceptable, staff will return at a future council meeting for authorization to execute 
contracts with Oakpointe Holdings, BranBar/H&C Enterprises, and Stalzer and Associates for 
completion of the proposed Northern Gateway Area Study Phase II scopes of work.  All funding 
for the work performed by Stalzer and Associates will be provided by BranBar/H&C Enterprises 
and Oakpointe Holdings.  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   

1.) Do not proceed with any subarea planning study of the Northern Gateway Area at this 
time. 

2.) Only proceed with subarea planning for the Hawk property already within the UGA. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
No direct city budget dollars are to be allocated to this Study.  All funding for the contract 
amount for Phase II will be provided by BranBar/H&C Enterprises and Oakpointe Holdings 
through separate agreements with the city.  Though the city does not envision spending any 
direct funds for Phase II, the city will provide some in-kind services in the form of staff time for 
project management, data collection, meeting organization, public notices, and maintaining 
website information for public outreach.    
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    _____Ordinance            Resolution______Motion__  X _     Other 
 
This proposed scope of work and approach to subarea planning for Phase II of the Northern 
Gateway Study is provided to council for information purposes, review, and comment.  No 
specific action is required at this time.  Contracts for execution of the proposed work will be 
provided at a future council meeting.    
 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, Finance Director, City Attorney 

70 of 95



SE 256TH ST

18
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 261ST ST

SE 262ND PL

19
1S

T P
L S

E

20
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

17
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 244TH ST

19
3R

D 
PL

 SE

SE 244TH PL

FRONTAGE RD

SE 262ND ST

SE 246TH ST
17

7T
H 

PL
 S

E

SE 259TH ST

SE 260TH ST

18
5T

H P
L S

E

186TH PL SE

18
4T

H 
AV

E 
SE18

3R
D 

AV
E S

E

17
5T

H 
WA

Y 
SE

SE 247TH ST

19
9T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 257TH ST

17
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

17
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

17
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 260TH PL

SE
 18

4T
H 

PL

SE 259TH PL

18
3R

D 
PL

 S
E

19
5T

H P
L S

E

19
2N

D 
PL

 SE

18
4T

H P
L S

E

SE 26
3R

D PL

19
2N

D 
AV

E 
SE

19
6T

H 
AV

E S
E

17
8T

H 
PL

 SE

175
TH PL SE

18
1S

T P
L S

E

20
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

19
7T

H 
AV

E S
E

185TH LOOP SE

19
6T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 245TH PL

SE 246TH PL

SE 247TH PL

SE TIMBERLANE BLVD

SE 241ST PL

SE 261ST CT

20
2N

D A
VE

 SE

SE 261ST PL

19
3R

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 243RD ST

19
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 263RD CT

183RD CT SE

18
7 T

H P
L S

E

SE 258TH PL

SE 242ND ST

SE 241ST ST

20
1S

T C
T S

E

18
0T

H 
PL

 SE

187
TH CT SE

SE 244TH LN

SE 245TH CT

20
1S

T P
L S

E

SE 264TH ST

SE WAX RD

SE 260TH PL

19
0T

H 
PL

 SE17
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 260TH PL

201ST AVE SE

18
4T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 258TH ST

SE 262ND ST

SE 263RD ST SE 264TH ST

SE 260TH ST

SE 262ND ST

188TH AVE SE

SR 18

18
4T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 260TH ST

SE 259TH PL

SE 259TH ST

SE 257TH ST

SE 259TH PL

SE 263RD ST

18
5T

H 
PL

 SE

18
9T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 258TH STSE 258TH ST

SE 259TH PL
SE 260TH ST

20
6T

H 
AV

E S
E

19
6T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 262ND ST

SE 261ST PL

18
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 261ST ST

17
5T

H 
AV

E S
E

19
3R

D 
PL

 SE
SE 262ND ST

SE 244TH PL

SE 243RD ST

18
5T

H 
PL

 SE

18
3R

D A
VE

 S
E

172ND AVE SE

SE 260TH PL
19

2N
D 

PL
 S

E

20
3R

D A
VE

 SE

18
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

17
4T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 260TH CT

198TH PL SE

SE 263RD ST

SE 263RD PL

174TH PL SE

185TH AVE SE

SE 261ST CT

SE TIMBERLANE BLVD

SE 260TH ST

18
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

.
1 inch = 700 feet

Northern Gateway Annexation Area

Created By: Shawn Buck 1/12/2012

Sub-Area Plan Study Boundary

City Limits

Streams/Creeks

Surface Water

ATTACHMENT 1

71 of 95



DRAFT November 14, 2012 Stalzer and Associates and Consultant Team Page 1 of 6 

DRAFT 
NORTHERN GATEWAY AREA, PHASE 2: 

SOUTH AREA SUBAREA PLAN AND PLANNED ACTION EIS 
November 14, 2012 

OVERVIEW 
A subarea plan and planned action EIS will be prepared for the south area including both the area within 
the city limits and the adjacent area outside the city limits but within the Covington Urban Growth Area 
(UGA).  The scope of work is similar to the development tasks in the scope of work dated March 21, 
2012, but it includes a wider range of alternatives and annexation facilitation.  The purpose of the 
subarea plan will be to further develop the planning concepts illustrated in the August 13, 2012 
“Preliminary Land Use Concept Plan” subject to additional review of critical areas shown on the Concept 
Plan.   Tasks will include: 

• A Master Land Use Plan containing development areas, street network, critical areas based on City 
of Covington standards, and a passive and active open space network 

• Planning sessions with representatives of the major property owner(s) and the community 

• Land use designations and zoning based on existing or proposed City of Covington Comprehensive 
Plan land use designations and zoning classifications implementing the Master Land Use Plan 

• Capital facilities program and preliminary infrastructure plans  

• Implementing development standards, regulations, and design standards  

• Refinement of the annexation fiscal analysis and facilitation of the annexation process 

• Presentations  at Planning Commission and City Council meetings and public hearings 

It is anticipated that the Planned Action EIS will contain a No Action alternative, two action alternatives, 
one of which will be the preferred alternative. The alternatives would be detailed enough to allow for a 
planned action, development agreement, and tailored policies and code. The key elements of the 
environment for the EIS would include: 

• Earth 

• Plants and Animals 

• Surface Water 

• Air Quality 

• Transportation 

• Land Use 

• Cultural Resources 

• Public Services 

• Utilities 

• Noise 

ATTACHMENT 2

72 of 95



DRAFT November 14, 2012 Stalzer and Associates and Consultant Team Page 2 of 6 

METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

Subarea Plan 
The Subarea Plan will contain: 

• Vision, Goals, Objectives, and Policy Framework 

• Land Use, Circulation, and Open Space Concepts 

• Zoning Map and Regulations,  Design Guidelines, and other Development Standards as 
appropriate 

• Capital Facilities Plan 

Wherever possible, the subarea plan will use or build upon the structure of existing applicable Covington 
development standards and regulations. A zoning map will be prepared reflecting the proposed zoning 
classifications. The design guidelines will be unique to this subarea and clearly differentiate between the 
desired character of the South Study Area and that of downtown Covington. The design guidelines will 
be based on key planning principles that relate to the community vision as well as best practices for 
urban planning.  

The subarea plan will also include a draft capital facilities plan based upon the City’s budget and 6-year 
Capital Improvement Program as well as project lists developed with Draft EIS alternatives. The project 
team will compile cost and revenue information from the City and special districts. The final capital 
facilities plan will be based on the preferred alternative.  It should be noted that cost estimates for parks 
and transportation improvements are not included in the present scope. 

Planned Action EIS 
General Approach: The Existing Conditions Assessment for all topics covered in the Phase 1 Northern 
Gateway Study will be incorporated into the Affected Environment section of the Draft EIS. 

Earth: The project team will use the City’s Critical Area Ordinance maps and the Natural Resource 
Conservation Service maps to characterize existing soil types, especially steep slopes, unstable soils, and 
highly erodible soils.  The existing reclamation plan for the Lakeside gravel mine will be reviewed to 
characterize how post-reclamation soil conditions will affect the suitability for future land uses at the 
current mine site.  Relevant City building code regulations for erosion control and soil stability will be 
summarized and a range of options presented for how the City could implement special geotechnical 
standards for project-level permitting. 

Plants and Animals and Surface Water:  The technical analysis for each section will include a description 
of existing conditions, assessment of the significant adverse impacts (direct, indirect and cumulative), 
evaluation of the potential mitigation measures for each of the alternatives, and discussion of regulatory 
implications and permit requirements.  Up to three report figures will be included.   

Air Quality: Existing air quality conditions and regulations relevant to the proposal will be summarized  
including Puget Sound Clean Air Agency regulations for stationary sources and construction fugitive dust 
and future requirements for Transportation Conformity determinations for roadway improvements.  To 
evaluate potential impacts to regional air quality the City’s forecasts for population growth and regional 
vehicle miles traveled (VMT) will be compared to regional Puget Sound forecasts developed by the 

73 of 95



DRAFT November 14, 2012 Stalzer and Associates and Consultant Team Page 3 of 6 

Puget Sound Regional Council (the City will provide the population and VMT data used for this analysis).  
To evaluate greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, city-provided land use forecasts will be used to estimate 
existing GHG emissions and future GHG emissions for each alternative, using the King County GHG 
spreadsheet.  The “Build Carbon Neutral” calculator will be used to forecast soil-carbon GHG emissions 
caused by removing existing vegetation from the study area.   A comprehensive list of relevant GHG 
reduction measures the City could consider as part of project-level environmental permitting will be 
presented. 

Transportation:  A transportation analysis will be prepared combining a technical analysis and  DEA 
transportation modeling.   

• No Action Alternative:  The project team will work with City staff to develop the appropriate future 
citywide land use to be analyzed for 2031 No Action conditions. The land use will be provided to the 
City’s transportation consultant (DEA) who will model it using the City’s travel demand forecasting 
model. This scope assumes that DEA will post-process the model data and provide the forecasted 
2031 PM peak hour volumes in Synchro files. This task also assumes that DEA will provide the model 
results for the City’s arterial links to support concurrency analysis. The project team will evaluate 
future level of service at citywide intersections, and coordinate with City staff and the City’s traffic 
consultant to identify locations where improvements would be needed under No Action conditions 
(without the proposed Subarea Plan). This task assumes that only the PM peak hour would be 
evaluated. It also assumes that 47 citywide intersections would be evaluated (45 intersections 
already defined in the City’s concurrency program plus the two SE 256th Street/SR 18 ramp 
intersections), with up to 10 intersections warranting more detailed analysis to identify projects to 
address potential deficiencies. This task does not include development of cost estimates for 
additional capacity improvement projects that are identified; it is assumed that DEA would be 
retained to develop cost estimates, consistent with the City’s standard methods, if needed. 

• DEIS Action Alternatives – The project team will evaluate two Action alternatives for the DEIS, using 
the following methods.  

o Land Use Assessment – This task assumes time to participate in the workshop to develop the 
land use alternatives and to coordinate with the project team on the transportation aspects of 
the DEIS land use alternatives as they are developed.  

o Trip Generation – Once the land use has been defined for each alternative, we will project the 
trips generated by build-out of the land use that has been defined for each alternative, using 
equations, rates, and methods defined in the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip 
Generation and travel mode data compiled by the Puget Sound Regional Council (PSRC). Trip 
generation analysis will take into account the potential for internal trips (trips between uses 
within the project sites), pass-by trips, and diverted-linked trips.  

o Vehicle Trip Distribution and Assignment – The projected trip generation data for each DEIS 
alternative will be provided to the City’s transportation consultant (DEA) who will input the trips 
into the City’s travel demand forecasting model to project the assignment of project-generated 
trips on the City street system. Any new major roads that are anticipated to be built at the 
project site could also be added to the modeled scenarios. This scope assumes that DEA will 
post-process the model data and provide the forecasted 2031 PM peak hour volumes in Synchro 
files, as well as the model results for the City’s arterial links to support concurrency analysis.  

74 of 95



DRAFT November 14, 2012 Stalzer and Associates and Consultant Team Page 4 of 6 

o Off-Site Operational and Safety Analysis – A “with project” level of service for 2031 build-out 
conditions for the citywide analysis intersections will be evaluated. This task assumes that initial 
level of service assessment will include all 47 city analysis intersections to determine which 
would carry project-generated trips that exceed the City’s thresholds for transportation impact 
analysis. Intersections expected to be significantly impacted by the project (as defined by City 
standards) will be identified as will improvements needed to address those impacts. The 
collision assessment completed in Phase 1 will be updated to include any additional analysis 
intersections that are added to the study area as a result of the impact analysis.   

o On-Site Access and Circulation Analysis –The level of service at the project site’s potential 
access driveways will be evaluated and potential issues with on-site vehicle circulation 
identified.  Recommendations for the locations and capacities needed for internal roadways and 
driveways will be prepared.  

o Non-Motorized and Transit Analysis – Potential operational and safety impacts of pedestrian 
and bicycle modes will be evaluated and recommendations for connections to the external non-
motorized network identified, as well as internal access and circulation connections.  

o Parking Analysis – The parking supply needs for each land use alternative will be evaluated 
based upon the City’s code requirements.  

o Mitigation – Any improvement projects or other measures that are identified in the tasks 
described above will be documented. This task does not include development of cost estimates 
for any additional transportation improvement projects that are identified.  

o Preliminary DEIS Transportation Section – The methods, results and recommendations of all of 
the tasks described above will be documented in the DEIS transportation section. This task 
assumes creation of up to eight figures.  

o DEIS Transportation Section – Comments provided by the City and project applicant on the 
preliminary draft will be incorporated into the DEIS transportation section.   

o Meetings – This scope assumes two meetings with the project team/City staff during the 
development of the DEIS, and participation in one public meeting held during the DEIS comment 
period.  

• FEIS Preferred Alternative –One Preferred alternative will be evaluated for the FEIS, using the same 
methods described for the DEIS Action alternatives. This scope assumes that analysis of 
transportation impacts will be conducted for the PM peak hour. 

o Phasing Analysis – For mitigation identified to support build-out of the Preferred Alternative, 
trigger points at which the mitigation would be needed will be identified. The trigger points will 
be based upon project-generated trips.  

o Preliminary FEIS Transportation Section – This task assume time to respond to up to 25 unique 
comments on the DEIS transportation section; the tasks defined above will be documented in 
the FEIS transportation section. This task assumes creation of up to two additional figures. It is 
also assumes that no additional intersections or alternatives (besides the Preferred Alternative) 
would require analysis.   

Land Use: Land use patterns, land use compatibility and activity levels, and population/employment 
capacity of the Draft EIS alternatives and Final EIS preferred alternative will be reviewed.  The 
relationship of the Subarea Plan to the City’s Comprehensive Plan and other functional plans will be 
identified, as will policy or code provisions that serve as mitigation measures. 

75 of 95



DRAFT November 14, 2012 Stalzer and Associates and Consultant Team Page 5 of 6 

Cultural Resources:  Existing conditions and potential future conditions will be addressed based on the 
area redeveloping and compliance with local, state, and federal regulations. A literature search will be 
documented. If needed, limited locations will be reviewed in the field at a reconnaissance level. There 
will be no shovel probing or excavation associated with this analysis. Contact will be made with local 
tribes in conjunction with the City, to help identify any Traditional Cultural Properties located within the 
project area. Information gathered from the site visit and tribal consultation will be included in the EIS. 

Public Services:  Existing levels of service, estimated needs and demand for service, and projected levels 
of service under each alternative for the range of services that could be altered as a result of each 
studied alternative will be reviewed.  To the extent feasible the analysis will be based on available plans 
and population-based estimates of demand.  Efforts will be coordinated with city staff and service 
providers to craft mitigation language. The analysis will be heavily coordinated with the Capital Facilities 
Plan as it contains similar information about levels of service and planned improvements. 

Utilities: A capacity analysis and identification of deficiencies and other issues for one no action, two 
alternatives, and one preferred alternative will be prepared.  The analysis will include:  a narrative of 
issues regarding sewer, water, and storm facilities to serve the alternatives; an order-of-magnitude 
estimate of costs of providing sewer, water and storm services for the action alternatives and preferred 
plan (to support the capital facility plan); and maps of the necessary facilities by alternative. 

Noise:  The existing noise environment and key existing noise sources in the study area (no baseline 
noise monitoring is proposed) will be qualitatively characterized.  Relevant state and local regulations 
that will minimize future noise impacts caused by future development will be cited.  Published sources 
will be used to estimate future increases in day-night noise levels (Ldn) based on forecast future land 
use population density.  For the future No Action alternative, the potential noise impacts caused by 
continued gravel mining will be evaluated. The Traffic Noise Model (TNM) lookup model will be used to 
develop a general spatial trend for future noise levels near up to three key roadways affecting the study 
area.  Additionally, the noise review will be coordinated with the team’s wildlife specialists to assess 
future wildlife impacts. 

Annexation Fiscal Analysis and Facilitation of the Annexation Process 
The fiscal analysis completed in Phase 1 will be updated to address the potential growth associated with 
the action alternatives of the EIS. Advisory support will be provided to the City on the annexation 
process for the UGA. 

Public Meetings and Presentations 
The Subarea Plan and EIS will be developed in an iterative process, with the following general steps: 

• Community Scoping and Alternatives Workshops:  EIS scoping and subarea plan visioning will be 
conducted with the public, including potential imagery and identity for the South Study Area and a 
hands-on planning exercise with real-world examples of the type and scale of uses and 
developments contemplated for the subarea  

• Team Work Session:  Based on the planning concepts illustrated in the August 13, 2012 “Preliminary 
Land Use Concept Plan”, any additional critical area information, and the results of the hands-on 
planning exercise, alternative land plan solutions will be prepared 

76 of 95



DRAFT November 14, 2012 Stalzer and Associates and Consultant Team Page 6 of 6 

• Planning Commission Review – Range of EIS Alternatives:  A range of preliminary alternatives from 
visioning and team workshop, as well as a “Consumer Reports” evaluation or pros/cons analysis of 
the environment, traffic, market, fiscal and similar considerations will be prepared for Planning 
Commission review and direction for the Draft EIS  

• Draft EIS and Draft Subarea Plan Comment Period:  A public meeting will be held during the Draft EIS 
30-day comment period to review the Draft Plan and action alternatives and to develop a preferred 
alternative for study in a Preferred Subarea Plan and Final EIS 

• Planning Commission Workshop, Public Hearing and Deliberations: The project team in coordination 
with city staff will facilitate a workshop with the Planning Commission focusing on the preferred 
plan, proposed comprehensive plan policies and designations; implementing development 
standards and regulations; and design guidelines. The project team will assist the city staff at a 
public hearing and a deliberation session. 

• City Council Review: The project team will assist the city staff at one public hearing and one 
deliberation session with the City Council. 

 

 

 

 

77 of 95



MEETINGS 
& PUBLIC 
OUTREACH

PLANNED 
ACTION EIS

SUBAREA PLAN 

Kick off Team 
Meeting

Open Space/Trails/ 
Circulation Map
Open Space/Trails/ 
Circulation Map

Kick off Team 

.

JANUARY

Community 
Workshop

EIS Scoping

City of Covington South Area Subarea Plan & EIS Schedule

2013

Preliminary Draft EIS

Draft EIS & Draft 
Planned Action 
Ordinance 

Comment 
Period

Preferred Subarea Plan  
& Regulations

Preferred Land Use 
Alternative

Preferred CFP

Final EIS & Final 
Planned Action 
Ordinance 



Public Meeting 
Draft EIS / Draft Plan

Planning Commission 
Hearing & Meeting

City Council Hearing 
& Meeting

Adopted  
Plan & 

Regulations

Planning 
Commission

Legislative Briefings

PHASE 2

Preliminary 
Alternatives

Schedule Prepared: November 14, 2012

FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Background and Code 
Analysis

Refined Concepts

Concept Plan 
Development

Land Use & Zoning Regulations

Image Boards & Vignettes

Refined Alternatives

Draft Plan Preferred Plan

Annexation & Fiscal 
Analysis

78 of 95



DRAFT November 14, 2012 Stalzer and Associates and Consultant Team Page 1 of 2 

DRAFT 
NORTHERN GATEWAY AREA, PHASE 2  

NORTH AREA PLANNING STUDY: SUMMARY SCOPE OF WORK 
November 14, 2012 

OVERVIEW 
The Northern Gateway North Area Planning Study will be based on the assumption that over time the 
north area (the “notch”) will become part of the City of Covington and therefore, the study will refine 
the planning concepts illustrated in the August 13, 2012 “Preliminary Land Use Concept Plan.”    

Tasks will include: 

• A refined Land Use Concept illustrating development subareas, potential street network, critical 
areas based on King County standards, and a passive and active open space network. 

• Land use designations and zoning based on existing or proposed City of Covington Comprehensive 
Plan land use designations and zoning classifications. 

• Traffic Impact of “Future Potential Commercial/Retail” Zone (probable large format Regional 
Commercial) in close proximity to Roads and Intersections; i.e. SE 256th St & Wax Road.  

• Financial impacts to residents in Notch based on theoretical upzone from “RA-5” in King County 
currently to Urban Residential, following with an annexation to the City of Covington , where lowest 
density residential is R-4 (4 du/acre). This will be qualitative and based on a residual land analysis. 

• Refreshment of the Phase 1 Fiscal Analysis based on the refined Land Use Concept and a review of 
annexation impacts to residents by moving from County services and taxes to City services and 
taxes.   

• Meetings with representatives of the major property owner(s) and development services staff. 

• Presentation at a Planning Commission study session and a City Council Study Session. 

ASSUMPTIONS 
Land Use Concept: The refined Land Use Concept will be developed based on the following iterative 
process: 

• Kick off meeting  with land owner and City to establish target uses and development parameters 

• Background and code analysis 

• Concept plan development 

• Meeting with land owner and City 

• Land Use Designations and Zoning 

• Draft Study 

• Presentation at a Planning Commission & City Council 

• Final Study 

ATTACHMENT 3

79 of 95



DRAFT November 14, 2012 Stalzer and Associates and Consultant Team Page 2 of 2 

Traffic Impact Analysis: Three elements of the traffic impact analysis are assumed: 

• The traffic impact analysis will conduct level of service and other impact analyses for one No Action 
alternative and one Preferred alternative. No travel demand modeling will be required for future 
transportation analysis; however, this scope assumes that future baseline (No Action) traffic volume 
forecasts in the study area will be based upon available transportation model data provided by the 
City.  

• Qualitative impact assessment will also be conducted for transit, non-motorized modes, site access 
and circulation, and safety.   

• The effort will also include a qualitative assessment of the transportation infrastructure and services 
that would be needed to support the refined land use concept plan, including roadways and non-
motorized infrastructure. This task will include assessment of the land use concept with respect to 
City design standards, level of service standards, and other applicable policies. 

 

Subject Matter Experts:  
Biologist effort includes consultation on County regulations and application of the Phase 1 Northern 
Gateway Study Findings to assist the Planning Study. Engineering consultant to provide expertise to the 
refined land use concept in terms of infrastructure needs determined in Phase 1 and to contribute to 
Planning Study consistent with budgeted level of effort. 

80 of 95



PROJECT 
MEETINGS

PLANNING 
STUDY 

JANUARY

Kick off meeting with 
City & Landowner

City of Covington North Area Planning Study
2014

Background and Code 
Analysis

Refined Land Use 
Concept

Draft Traffic Analysis



Draft Fiscal & Annexation Analysis



Team Working 
Session

Planning 
Commission 
Study Session

City Council 
Study Session

PHASE 2

Concept Plan 
Development

Schedule Prepared: November 14, 2012

FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY

Meeting with City & 
Landowner

Land Use & Zoning Regulations

Draft Study Final Study

81 of 95



 Agenda Item 6 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 27, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:   CONSIDER WRITING-OFF UNCOLLECTIBLE FEDERAL AND COUNTY 

SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT DRAINANGE UTILITY ACCOUNTS 
RECEIVABLE 

 
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. Agenda item 2 from September 28, 2010 
2. Minutes from September 28, 2010 
3. List of proposed accounts receivable write-off’s 
 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION:  
During the September 28, 2010 city council meeting, the City Council was presented with the 
results from the Surface Water Management (SWM) drainage utility audit.  At that time, there 
were five federal properties that were found to have declined to pay the SWM fee based on the 
advice of their legal counsel:  the Bonneville Power Administration, which had four parcels, and 
the U.S Postal Service which had one parcel.  Since that time one more parcel owned by King 
County Roads has been added.   
 
Council consensus during the September 28, 2010 meeting was to not pursue past billings with 
the above entities and instead move forward with collection in 2011 and beyond.  All three 
entities paid the fees in 2011.  Public Works is in the process of following up on their 2012 fees. 
 
This blue sheet would allow the Finance Department to remove the past billings for the three 
entities from the City’s financial statements.  The total amount of write-off would be 
$900,066.93 and would cover the billings from 1998-2010.  Attached is a list of the amount 
owed from each entity by parcel and year.  
 
Beginning in 2012, the SWM Fund accounting structure is converting to an enterprise fund.  One 
of the accounting requirements of becoming an enterprise fund is to recognize all revenues as 
they become measurable not when they are received.  What this means is that as part of the 
conversion if we don’t write off the uncollectible amount above we would need to fully 
recognize the uncollectible amount as revenue in the SWM Fund.  This would distort the 
financial picture by overstating revenues that will not actually be received.  
 
ALTERNATIVES:  

1. The Council could decide not to write-off the uncollectible accounts and continue to 
carry them on the City’s financial statements.   

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
This would reduce the City’s tax receivable and deferred revenue accounts by $900,066.93. 
 

82 of 95



CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance  _____Resolution        X    Motion    _____Other 
  
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember __________  
seconds, to make a motion to write-off $900,066.93 in uncollectible 
accounts receivable. 

 

83 of 95



 Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  September 28, 2010 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDERATION OF FINDINGS FROM AN AUDIT OF THE SURFACE 

WATER ACCOUNTS. 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Summary of findings from a review of the Surface Water Accounts 
 
PREPARED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The City of Covington has contracted with King County to provide billing services for the 
Surface Water Utility.  According to Chapter 13 of the Covington Municipal Code, the rates are 
divided into two categories, a flat rate and a sliding scale rate based on the percentage of 
impervious surface.  The flat rate is for all “residential parcels” and “very lightly developed non-
residential parcels” (less than 10% impervious).  All other “non-residential parcels” have a 
varying rate from “Light (10-20% impervious)” to “Very Heavy (above 85% impervious)” 
depending on percentage of impervious surface over the entire parcel acreage.  King County 
prepares the billings once each year and the amounts are included with the property tax 
statements.  The information about each parcel, including land use, size, and impervious 
percentage has been previously determined by King County and used for the annual billing.  
 
During a preliminary review of selected parcels, some inconsistencies in the data were 
discovered.  Subsequently, the Public Works Department embarked on a more complete review 
of the surface water accounts.   
 
The recent audit of the accounts included a review of each parcel within the City of Covington 
for the data necessary to develop appropriate fees.  Very few inconsistencies were found in 
residential accounts.  A few newly constructed homes had not yet been included in the accounts 
and three were inappropriately coded as residential.  However, discrepancies found in the non-
residential fees varied from minor to significant.  In some cases, the area of the parcel from the 
Surface Water Accounts (from King County) did not match the King County Assessor’s records.  
Other differences were found in the impervious area of a parcel.  The areas in the Assessor 
records appear to be more reliable than the Surface Water Account numbers.  The Assessor area 
information was used to develop fees for all parcels.   
 
Aerial photography from available sources was used to evaluate the impervious areas of each 
“non-residential” parcel.  The King County iMap system measuring feature was used to evaluate 
the impervious area where discrepancies were apparent.  
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

84 of 95



 

SUMMARY OF RESULTS 
 
Private Commercial / Non-residential 
Of the 100 existing private commercial accounts, 68 required updating and 32 were found to be 
consistent with current assessor records and impervious areas.  Twelve commercial properties 
not listed in King County’s billing accounts were found to be improved and new accounts were 
developed.   
 
Eleven Homeowner Association parcels and six TRACTS were not listed in the accounts but 
found to have impervious improvements.  These parcels are granted a reduction in fees according 
to CMC 13.30.070, Rate Adjustments and Appeals.  It allows fees for open space property to 
include only the impervious portion of the total area.  King County does not have a current 
method to bill property listed as TRACTS (without a specific parcel number).  Of the six 
TRACTS only one has a significant impact and that is the Timberlane Clubhouse.     
 
Taxpayers with new or a significant increase in non-residential fees will be sent notification of 
the 2011 fees for their parcel. 
  
Private Residential  
As mentioned earlier, only three parcels that were listed as residential needed to be changed to 
non-residential uses.  Also, 20 newly developed parcels needed to be added to the billing 
accounts.  No other adjustments were needed. 
 
Federal Commercial / Non-residential 
Five Federal properties were found to have declined to pay the Surface Water Management fees 
based on advice of legal council.  The Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) has four parcels, 
and the U.S. Postal Service has one parcel.  Three of the BPA parcels were found to have 
inconsistent area records. 
 
Other Government 
The City of Covington had 11 parcel accounts for 2010.  This included three commercial 
accounts for the City Maintenance Facility, Jenkins Creek Park and the property purchased for 
the Foss Roundabout and eight residential accounts including the skate park and properties 
purchased or donated for other right-of-way or surface water facilities.  All but two of the 
original 11 City parcels were adjusted to reflect the current uses.  Four additional City-owned 
parcels containing impervious improvements were identified and will be listed as commercial 
accounts.  One of them actually contains a sanitary sewer lift station operated by Soos Creek 
Water and Sewer District.   
 
The Covington Water District was found to have three parcel accounts and they required no 
adjustments.   
 
The Kent School District has 12 active parcels.  The seven schools are coded as commercial. The 
other five are residential.  The surface Water Management fees for one residential parcel have 
been paid.  The other 11 parcels have been listed as EXEMPT in the accounts and fees were not 
billed.  Special provisions in CMC 13.30.070, Rate Adjustments and Appeals, allow fees for 

85 of 95



 

school property to be reduced based on an evaluation of a school education program for surface 
and storm water management. 
 
Soos Creek Water and Sewer District had one parcel in the commercial account list for the lift 
station at 18401 SE 262nd Place.  Two additional lift station parcels were identified, one at 
Covington Elementary School and one in Wingfield.  These are reported as new commercial 
accounts.  
 
The Tahoma School District has one parcel within the City limits which consists of the 
Covington Aquatic Center.  The property will be submitted as a new commercial account.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Kent and Tahoma School Districts 
 

The eleven active Kent School District parcels would ordinarily have generated nearly 
$116,500 in fees for 2010.  However, because the district has been performing routine 
maintenance on the facilities for the school properties a rate adjustment is allowed.  
CMC 13.30.070, Rate Adjustments and Appeals, provides for a reduction in the Rate 
Class for appropriate surface and storm water facility maintenance.  This provision 
allows the total of fees for all parcels to be reduced to about $63,200.  Further fee 
reductions can be achieved by the school district with their submittal of a Surface 
Water Management education program for and a review by the City of Covington.  This 
has not been done in the past. 
 
The Tahoma School District has only the Aquatics Center property within the City.  
The fees for the property will likely be passed to the City. 
 

The following are alternatives regarding the Kent School District based on the above: 
 

1. Submit the revised account information to provide for billing the Kent School 
District for the reduced annual fees of about $63,200. 

2. Evaluate the Kent School District Surface Water Management education program 
for a potential additional reduction of fees.   

3. Continue to have King County evaluate the school exemption for Surface Water 
Management education and exempt schools and other school district property as 
they recommend.  

4. Modify the existing Covington Municipal Code Chapter to provide an exemption to 
the Surface Water Management fees for schools. 

 
Prior Year Fees 

CMC 13.30.070, Rate Adjustments and Appeals, provides for adjusting fees for the prior 
three years.  This includes disbursement and collection of fees billed in error.  If 
authorized to collect fees from prior years, gross revenues could approach $100,000 for 
2010 but would be less for earlier years.  Cash flow needs for fees billed in error could 
be in the range of $200,000 to $300,000 as refund checks would probably go out before 

86 of 95



 

a substantial portion of the potential revenue is collected.  Not to mention, all of the 
anticipated additional revenue may not be collected. 
 
If authorized, additional research would be needed to determine the year the 
improvements (added impervious surface) where developed in order to properly assess 
the various parcels.  Also, negotiations with King County would be needed in order to 
determine costs to prepare invoice.  
 

The following are alternatives for collecting fees from prior years based on the above 
information:  

1.  Calculate the fees for each parcel for 2010, 2009 and 2008.  
2.  Choose to begin the revised billing beginning in 2011.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Depending on actions recommended by Council, the following options are possible: 
 

1. Implementation of the audit results alone with the School Districts remaining exempt 
would result in an additional increase of approximately $49,000 in 2011 SWM revenue. 

2. Implementation of the planned 3% increase on SWM rates and no other changes to the 
accounts would result in an increase of approximately $89,000 in 2011 revenue above 
2010. 

3. Removing the exemption from the School Districts and applying a discount as mentioned 
above, would result in an additional increase of approximately $60,000 in 2011 SWM 
revenue.  

 
The above calculations do not include revenues that are currently not being paid by BPA and the 
Post Office.   
 
The potential unanticipated revenue from prior years that may be sought is difficult to estimate 
given the issues noted in the alternatives.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution           Motion     X    Other 
 

NO ACTION NECESSARY – DISCUSSION ITEM ONLY 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney, Finance Director 
 

87 of 95



September 28, 2010 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Approved:  October 26, 2010 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, September 28, 2010 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
September 28, 2010, at 7:03 p.m., with Mayor Margaret Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, David Lucavish, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; David 
Nemens, Community Development Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Richard Hart, Planning 
Manager; Salina Lyons, Senior Planner; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 
 Dr. Dick Stedry, Chief Business Officer, Kent School District, accepted a proclamation 

recognizing the week of October 17-23, 2010 as “Safe Schools Week” in Covington. 
 Battalion Chief Greg Markley, Kent Fire Department Regional Fire Authority, accepted a 

proclamation recognizing the week of October 3-9, 2010 as “Fire Prevention Week” in 
Covington. 

 Public Works Director Glenn Akramoff accepted a proclamation recognizing Saturday, 
October 23, 2010, as “Make a Difference Day” in Covington. 

 Planning Commission Vice-Chair Daniel Key accepted a proclamation recognizing 
October as “National Community Planning Month” in Covington. 

 Personnel & Human Services Analyst Victoria Throm accepted a proclamation 
recognizing October as “Domestic Violence Awareness Month” in Covington. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Jack McCullough, on behalf of Valley Medical Center, thanked Planning Manager Richard 
Hart and staff for all the hard work on the downtown zoning code changes over the last two 
weeks.  Mr. McCullough advised that he had an opportunity to look over some of the draft 
documents and wished to point out a few inconsistencies he noticed and some remaining 

ATTACHMENT 2

88 of 95



September 28, 2010 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Approved:  October 26, 2010 
 

 2 

inquiries he had which included:  1) an inconsistency between the street type map in the zoning 
code and the street type map in the design guidelines in a draft document; 2) clarification on the 
ground floor retail requirement; 3) clarification on the 50 percent street frontage requirement; 
and 4) response as to whether an ambulance drop off area would be considered a drive through. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Approval of Vouchers:  Vouchers #24113-24182, in the Amount of $300,408.89, Dated 

September 7, 2010; Payroll Checks #8455-8461, Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits 
in the Amount of $136,515.24, Dated September 17, 2010. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS: 
Youth & Family Services Commission - Chair Haris Ahmad reported on the August 12 and 
September 9, 2010 meetings. 
 
Arts Commission – Chair Gregg Lobdell reported on the September 2 special meeting and 
September 9 joint meeting with the Parks & Recreation Commission. 
 
Parks & Recreation Commission – Chair David Aldous reported on the September 9 joint 
meeting with the Arts Commission. 
 
Economic Development Council – Co-Chair Hugh Kodama reported on the August 26 and 
September 23, 2010 meetings. 
 
CONTINUED BUSINESS: 
1.  Consider Downtown Zoning Code Changes. 
 
Planning Manager Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item including a summary of 
Council directions to staff from the last meeting.  Mr. Hart broke down those directions to 
include:  1) adding emergency departments as a conditional use permit to the town center zone 
with certain conditions that would address location, the size of the building itself and the height, 
and to require a concept plan for any remaining ownership that went along with an emergency 
department; and 2) creating a two-acre minimum threshold for redevelopment of Covington Firs 
and Covington Township in the MHO zone and research language that would add a condition 
prohibiting leaving single family lots in between successive two-acre developments. 
 
Mr. Hart then proceeded to review the adopting ordinance and exhibits, pointing out some of the 
major changes being made to emergency departments to include:  1) requiring the location west 
of 171st; 2) limiting the maximum site size of an emergency department to four acres and 
limiting the maximum square footage to 50,000 square feet; 3) limiting the stories to two stories 
in height; 4) requiring the parking to be located behind the building; 5) requiring the inclusion of 
public spaces; 6) an emergency department would have to meet all the other design requirements 
in the town center zone that were not specifically stated or excluded within those provisions; and 

89 of 95



September 28, 2010 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Approved:  October 26, 2010 
 

 3 

7) a concept site plan must be submitted for all the other property under similar ownership that 
deals with the future planned uses and phases of buildings. 
 
Mr. Hart then reviewed the language changing Covington Firs and Covington Township 
redevelopment to two acres, stating that it is to be contiguous to a non-single family use of two 
acres or more, and any successive development shall not isolate single family lots or parcels less 
than two acres in size as a group between any subsequent developments.  
 
Mr. Hart then reviewed the language requiring town center development over four stories have 
80 percent of parking underground or within structures and not be fronting 171st; nursing care 
changing from permitted to non-permitted in the town center zone; and 168th Place and 165th 
Avenue being removed from the type II streets. 
 
Mr. Hart then answered the four concerns Mr. McCullough spoke on during public comments 
stating:  1) type II streets on the map in the zoning code and the map in the design guidelines was 
a miscommunication and had been resolved; 2) intent was that ground floor retail not be required 
in a two-story emergency department and the oversight had been resolved; 3) an ambulance drop 
off is not considered a drive through; and 4) staff needed further Council direction on building 
street frontage and bringing the buildings out within five feet of the street front.  Mr. Hart 
explained several options to Council. 
 
Councilmembers discussed and asked questions, and staff provided answers. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson summarized the understanding of Council discussion as to be in 
favor of:  1) deleting the emergency clause from the ordinance as it will be adopted in time to 
publish; 2) deleting the ground floor retail requirement for emergency departments; 3) not 
changing the location requirements for emergency departments; and 4) staff correcting various 
errata identified. 
 
Mr. Hart also clarified Council to be in favor of leaving the requirement as it is written that 50 
percent of building frontage must be within five feet of the right of way on the east/west streets.  
Mr. Hart pointed out any applicant can request a variance due to special circumstances. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
approve Ordinance No. 10-10 adopting new downtown zoning and development regulations 
in a revised Chapter 18.31; new design guidelines and standards for the downtown zoning 
districts; various land use text amendments to CMC Titles 14 and 18; and a new downtown 
zoning district map which includes a new R-18 multi-family zoning district.  Vote:  7-0.  
Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
2. Consider Audit Findings of Surface Water Accounts. 
 
Public Works Director Glenn Akramoff gave the staff report on this item and requested Council 
direction on staff recommendations and Council’s opinion on policy issues. 
 
Councilmembers asked questions, and Mr. Akramoff provided answers. 

90 of 95



September 28, 2010 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Approved:  October 26, 2010 
 

 4 

 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to direct staff to move forward on discussion 
with the school district but provide it with an exemption for this year and to also begin 
collection on all surface water accounts in 2011, moving forward from that point on. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson reminded Council of the temporary banner permit fee waiver that 
had been in effect all summer as a local economic stimulus program and mentioned that Mayor 
pro Tem Wagner had asked if it is possible to waive the current limit of 30 days in any one year 
period on the amount of time a temporary banner can be up.  Mr. Matheson went on to state that 
staff researched and found that unlike the fees, the time limit is a code issue rather than an 
administrative issue, requiring Council action to change it.  Mr. Matheson further stated that 
Council could change it temporarily without going through the full code amendment such as 
interim zoning versus permanent zoning.  Mr. Matheson requested Council’s direction as to 
whether it wished staff to prepare a report and draft ordinance that would extend the 30 day limit 
to a larger number for a limited period of time so it can evaluate both the impact on business 
retention and on the appearance of the community and then decide whether to direct the Planning 
Commission to begin the process of a permanent change. 
 
Mayor pro Tem Wagner suggested a 90 day limit. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to direct staff to prepare a report and draft 
ordinance and place this item on a future Council agenda. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Doug Mergenthaler, thanked Council for the work on the downtown zoning and its 
consideration in keeping the Valley Medical project moving forward.  Mr. Mergenthaler 
mentioned he felt that the project will add jobs and excitement to the city.  Mr. Mergenthaler also 
mentioned his concerns with business retention and his desire to continue discussion with 
councilmembers on assisting businesses in Covington become successful. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:15 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Deputy City Clerk     City Clerk 

91 of 95



City of Covington
Uncollectible Federal and County Accounts

1998-2010

Parcel No. Customer YEAR Amount Due

2522059271 U S POSTAL SERVICE 2010 6,334.06$               
2522059271 U S POSTAL SERVICE 2009 6,154.35                 

12,488.41$             

2622059016 KING COUNTY-ROADS 2010 321.38$                  

3522059054 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2010 9,882.97$               
3522059054 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2009 9,602.62                 
3522059054 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2008 9,227.64                 
3522059054 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2007 8,171.04                 
3522059054 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2006 7,771.88                 
3522059054 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2005 6,550.92                 

51,207.07$             

3522059128 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2010 170.54$                  
3522059128 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2009 165.70                    
3522059128 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2008 159.00                    
3522059128 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2007 141.00                    
3522059128 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2006 134.00                    
3522059128 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2005 112.00                    
3522059128 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2004 109.00                    
3522059128 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2003 107.00                    
3522059128 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2002 102.00                    
3522059128 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2001 85.02                      
3522059128 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2000 85.02                      
3522059128 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 1999 85.02                      
3522059128 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 1998 85.02                      

1,540.32$               

3622059010 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2010 74,700.34$             
3622059010 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2009 72,580.99               
3622059010 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2008 69,781.80               
3622059010 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2007 61,760.49               
3622059010 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2006 58,810.95               
3622059010 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2005 49,422.78               
3622059010 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2004 48,398.35               
3622059010 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2003 47,514.57               
3622059010 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2002 45,252.06               
3622059010 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2001 36,191.58               
3622059010 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2000 36,191.58               
3622059010 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 1999 36,191.58               
3622059010 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 1998 36,191.58               

672,988.65$           

ATTACHMENT 3

92 of 95



City of Covington
Uncollectible Federal and County Accounts

1998-2010

Parcel No. Customer YEAR Amount Due

3622059026 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2010 17,572.32$             
3622059026 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2009 17,073.74               
3622059026 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2008 16,417.28               
3622059026 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2007 14,528.36               
3622059026 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2006 13,828.76               
3622059026 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2005 11,694.98               
3622059026 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2004 11,448.49               
3622059026 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2003 11,239.42               
3622059026 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2002 10,704.23               
3622059026 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2001 9,253.38                 
3622059026 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 2000 9,253.38                 
3622059026 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 1999 9,253.38                 
3622059026 BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN 1998 9,253.38                 

161,521.10             
Total All Accounts 900,066.93$           

93 of 95



  
Covington City Council Meeting 
           Date: November 27, 2012  

 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

December 11, 2012 – City Council Regular Meeting  
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

94 of 95



Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-
480-2400.  
 

Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, December 11, 2012                                                                     City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment is not intended for conversation or debate.  Comments 
shall be limited to no more than four minutes per person and no more than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be 
notified in advance and background information shall be submitted in writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the 
right to deny any request, based on time constraints. Individuals may petition the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a 
future study session as time allows for up to 15 minutes to address the council on specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  November 27, 2012 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Accept Woodbridge Final Plat (Hart/Lyons) 
C-4. Execute an Agreement for Recycling Events for 2013 (Akramoff) 
C-5. Pass Ordinance Adopting a 2012 Budget Amendment (Hendrickson) 
C-6. Approve Architectural Contract (Thomas)  

 
CONTINUED BUSINESS 
1. Consider 2013 Legislative Agenda (Matheson) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Approve Interlocal Agreement with City of Kent for Fire Marshal, International Fire Code 

(IFC), and Fire Investigative Services (Hart) 
3. Approve Contracts with BranBar LLC and Yarrow Bay for Northern Gateway Phase II (Hart) 
4. Consider Right of First Offer to Purchase Covington Elementary School (Springer) 
5. Consider Ordinance Adopting the CY2013 Operating and Capital Budget (Hendrickson) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
   
ADJOURN  

Draft 
as of 11/20/12 

 

95 of 95

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	11-27-12 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, November 27, 2012                                                                     City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent Item 1 Green Sheet 11-27-2012 Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent Item 1 Attachment 1 11.13.2012 Reg CC
	Consent Item 2 Green Sheet Vouchers Approval 11-27-2012
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent Item 2 Attachment 1
	Consent Item 3 Green Sheet, Commerce Grant Contract, 2012-11-16
	Consent Item 3 Attachment 1
	Consent Item 4 Green Sheet, KCD Grant Contract, 2012-11-15
	Consent Item 4 Attachment 1
	Item 1 Blue Sheet 11-27-12 Blue Sheet 2013 Budget 2nd Public Hearing
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 2 Blue Sheet 11-27-12 Continue 2013 budget delibderations
	Item 3 Blue Sheet 11-27-12 Blue Sheet 2012 Property Tax Levy
	Item 3 Attachment 1 11-27-12 2012 Property Tax Levy Ordinance
	Item 3 Attachment 2
	Item 4 Blue Sheet 11-27-2012 Blue Sheet 2013 Property Tax Increase Percentage and Dollars
	Item 4 Attachment 1 11-27-2012 Ordinance 2013 Property Tax Increase Percentage and Dollars
	Item 5 Blue Sheet FINAL Blue Sheet on Proposed Scope of Work for Phase II of Northern Gateway Study for Council 11-27-12
	Agenda Item 5

	Item 5 Attachment 1 Northern Gateway UGA Study Map 4-24-12
	Item 5 Attachment 2-a Northern Gateway Study Phase II South SubArea Scope of Work 11-27-12
	Methods and Assumptions
	Subarea Plan
	Planned Action EIS
	Annexation Fiscal Analysis and Facilitation of the Annexation Process
	Public Meetings and Presentations


	Item 5 Attachment 3-a Northern Gateway Study Phase II North SubArea Scope of Work 11-27-12
	Overview
	Assumptions

	Item 6 Blue Sheet 11-27-12 SWM Write Offs Blue Sheet
	Item 6 Attachment 1
	Item 6 Attachment 2
	Item 6 Attachment 3
	Uncollectible Worksheet

	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	12-11-12 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, December 11, 2012                                                                     City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




